
AGENDA
BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

100 State Street, Beloit WI 53511
City Hall Forum – 7:00 p.m.
Monday, February 18, 2013

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. SPECIAL ORDERS OF THE DAY/ANNOUNCEMENTS – none

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS

a. Public Hearing and First Reading of a proposed Ordinance amending the City of Beloit
Comprehensive Plan for the properties located at 545 and 549 W. Grand Avenue; 615,
619, 625, and 629 Eighth Street; 548 Locust Street; 1203, 1233, 1249, 1253, and 1257
Sixth Street; 219 and 225 North Street; and 1313, 1317, 1323, 1327, 1333, 1339, 1343,
1349, and 1353 Sixth Street, from the Neighborhood Commercial, Two-family, and
Single-family Residential-Urban use designations, to the Institutional and Community
Service use designation (Christensen)
Plan Commission recommendation for approval 5-0

b. Public Hearing and First Reading of a proposed Ordinance amending the City of Beloit
Comprehensive Plan for the property located at 501 Prospect Street, from the
Institutional and Community Service use designation, to the Neighborhood Commercial
use designation (Christensen) Plan Commission recommendation for approval 5-0

c. Proposed Ordinance to amend the Zoning District Map of the City of Beloit to change
the zoning district classification of the property located at 2208 N. Lee Lane from R-1A,
Single-family Residential District, to PLI, Public Lands and Institutions District
(Christensen) Plan Commission recommendation for approval 6-0
First Reading, suspend the rules for a Second Reading

d. Resolution authorizing a Conditional Use Permit to allow indoor alcohol sales in a C-2,
Neighborhood Commercial District, for the property located at 1623 Park Avenue
(Christensen) Plan Commission recommendation for denial 6-0

5. CITIZENS PARTICIPATION

6. CONSENT AGENDA

All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no
separate discussion of these items unless a Council member so requests, in which event the item will be removed from the
General Order of Business and considered at this point on the agenda.

a. Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of February 4, 2013 (LeMire)

b. Resolution approving Change of Agent for Speedway, LLC, d/b/a Speedway



#4293, located at 2781 Milwaukee Road, from Nancy A. Bryant to Sheryl Lynn
LaTronico (LeMire) ABLCC recommendation for approval 6-0

c. Proposed City Center Connections Plan (Christensen) Refer to the Plan Commission
The City Center Plan is available for review at www.ci.beloit.wi.us

d. Application for a 2-Lot Certified Survey Map for the property located at 1650 Lee Lane
(Christensen) Refer to the Plan Commission

e. Resolution authorizing Final Payment of Public Works Contract C12-13, Colby Street
Reconstruction (Flesch)

f. Resolution authorizing Final Payment of Public Works Contract C12-20, McKinley
Avenue Reconstruction (Flesch)

g. Resolution authorizing Final Payment of Public Works Contract C12-03, West Grand
Parking Lot (Flesch)

h. Resolutions authorizing Final Payment of Public Works Contract C12-19, Street
Resurfacing 2012-Phase II (Flesch)

i. Resolution approving Farm Leases between the City of Beloit and Twin Oaks Farm
(Janke)

7. ORDINANCES

a. Presentation of a proposed Zoning Text Amendment creating Section 5-800 of the
Zoning Ordinance, Article V, Chapter 19 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City
of Beloit, to be known as the Wellhead Protection Ordinance (Mathos)
Refer to the Plan Commission

8. APPOINTMENTS -none

9. COUNCILOR ACTIVITIES AND UPCOMING EVENTS

10. CITY MANAGER’S PRESENTATION

a. Presentation on the Public Housing Redevelopment Project (Christensen/Pollard)

11. REPORTS FROM BOARD AND CITY OFFICERS

a. Resolution Declaring Official Intent to Reimburse Expenditures from Proceeds of
Borrowing (York)

b. Resolution Rejecting all Bids for Public Works Contract C13-04, Pohlman Field
Concourse Rehab (Flesch)

c. Resolution approving Release of City Rights under Development Agreements dated
November 4, 1998 and April 3, 2007 and access and parking easement dated May 30,
2008, regarding property located at the Eclipse Center (Casper)

12. ADJOURNMENT

http://www.ci.beloit.wi.us/


** Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of
disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information to request this service, please contact the
City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511.

Dated: February 13, 2013
Rebecca Houseman LeMire
City of Beloit City Clerk
http://www.ci.beloit.wi.us

You can watch this meeting live on Charter PEG channel 98 or digital channel
992. Meetings are rebroadcast during the week of the Council meeting on
Tuesday at 1:00 p.m., Thursday at 8:30 a.m. and Friday at 1:00 p.m.

http://www.ci.beloit.wi.us/


RPB-2013-03, Comprehensive Plan Amendments (SDB), Council Report

ORDINANCE NO. _____________

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE
CITY OF BELOIT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

The City Council of the City of Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin do ordain as follows:

Section 1. The Future Land Use Map (Map 10) of the City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan,
adopted in §12.015 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit, is hereby amended as
follows:

The future land use category of the following described land is hereby changed from
Neighborhood Commercial to Institutional & Community Services:

East 33 feet of the South 132 feet of Lot 2, Pierce’s Subdivision of Hackett’s
Addition to the City of Beloit, County of Rock, State of Wisconsin (also
known as 545 W. Grand Avenue, parcel number 13560970).

West 109 feet of the South 132 feet of Lot 2, Pierce’s Subdivision of
Hackett’s Addition to the City of Beloit, County of Rock, State of Wisconsin
(also known as 549 W. Grand Avenue, parcel number 13560960).

South 34 feet of the North 84 feet of Lot 2, Pierce’s Subdivision of Hackett’s
Addition to the City of Beloit, County of Rock, State of Wisconsin (also
known as 615 Eighth Street, parcel number 13561185).

The future land use category of the following described land is hereby changed from Single-
Family Residential – Urban to Institutional & Community Services:

North 50 feet of Lot 2, Pierce’s Subdivision of Hackett’s Addition to the City
of Beloit, County of Rock, State of Wisconsin (also known as 619 Eighth
Street, parcel number 13561180).

South 44.86 feet of the West 41.91 feet of Lot 74 and South 44 feet of Lot 75
of Tenney’s Addition to the City of Beloit, County of Rock, State of
Wisconsin (also known as 625 Eighth Street, parcel number 13561175).

North 62.92 feet of Lot 75 of Tenney’s Addition to the City of Beloit, County
of Rock, State of Wisconsin (also known as 629 Eighth Street, parcel number
13561170).

North 62.04 feet of the West 41.91 feet of Lot 74 of Tenney’s Addition to the
City of Beloit, County of Rock, State of Wisconsin (also known as 548
Locust Street, parcel number 13561165).

The future land use category of the following described land is hereby changed from Two-
Family/Townhouse Residential to Institutional & Community Services:



Lot 18, Block 6 of Noggle’s Addition to the City of Beloit, County of Rock,
State of Wisconsin (also known as 1203 Sixth Street, parcel number
12640535).

South 15 feet of Lot 13 and North 33 feet of Lot 14, Block 6 of Noggle’s
Addition to the City of Beloit, County of Rock, State of Wisconsin (also
known as 1233 Sixth Street, parcel number 12640615).

South 40.75 feet of Lot 11, Block 6 of Noggle’s Addition to the City of
Beloit, County of Rock, State of Wisconsin (also known as 1249 Sixth Street,
parcel number 12640600).

South 15.75 feet of Lot 10 and North 25.25 feet of Lot 11, Block 6 of
Noggle’s Addition to the City of Beloit, County of Rock, State of Wisconsin
(also known as 1253 Sixth Street, parcel number 12640595).

North 50.25 feet of Lot 10, Block 6 of Noggle’s Addition to the City of
Beloit, County of Rock, State of Wisconsin (also known as 1257 Sixth Street,
parcel number 12640590).

The future land use category of the following described land is hereby changed from Single-
Family Residential – Urban to Institutional & Community Services:

East 49 feet of Lot 23 of Dow’s Subdivision of Blocks 3 and 4 of Dow’s
Addition to the City of Beloit, County of Rock, State of Wisconsin (also
known as 219 North Street, parcel number 12630110).

Lot 22 and West 8 feet of Lot 23 of Dow’s Subdivision of Blocks 3 and 4 of
Dow’s Addition to the City of Beloit, County of Rock, State of Wisconsin
(also known as 225 North Street, parcel number 12630105).

Lot 21 of Dow’s Subdivision of Blocks 3 and 4 of Dow’s Addition to the City
of Beloit, County of Rock, State of Wisconsin (also known as 1313 Sixth
Street, parcel number 12630230).

Lot 20 of Dow’s Subdivision of Blocks 3 and 4 of Dow’s Addition to the City
of Beloit, County of Rock, State of Wisconsin (also known as 1317 Sixth
Street, parcel number 12630225).

Lot 19 and part of Lot 18 of Dow’s Subdivision of Blocks 3 and 4 of Dow’s
Addition to the City of Beloit, County of Rock, State of Wisconsin (also
known as 1323 Sixth Street, parcel number 12630220).

Part of Lot 18 of Dow’s Subdivision of Blocks 3 and 4 of Dow’s Addition to
the City of Beloit, County of Rock, State of Wisconsin (also known as 1327
Sixth Street, parcel number 12630215).

Part of Lot 17 of Dow’s Subdivision of Blocks 3 and 4 of Dow’s Addition to



the City of Beloit, County of Rock, State of Wisconsin (also known as 1333
Sixth Street, parcel number 12630210).

Lot 16 of Dow’s Subdivision of Blocks 3 and 4 of Dow’s Addition to the City
of Beloit, County of Rock, State of Wisconsin (also known as 1339 Sixth
Street, parcel number 12630205).

Lot 15 of Dow’s Subdivision of Blocks 3 and 4 of Dow’s Addition to the City
of Beloit, County of Rock, State of Wisconsin (also known as 1343 Sixth
Street, parcel number 12630200).

Lot 10 and East 19.99 feet of Lot 11, now known as Parcel B of Plat of
Survey Recorded 7/18/2006 as Document No. 1757726 and Lot 14 of Dow’s
Subdivision of Blocks 3 and 4 of Dow’s Addition to the City of Beloit,
County of Rock, State of Wisconsin (also known as 1349 Sixth Street, parcel
number 12630195).

West 30.02 feet of Lot 11, now known as Parcel A of Plat of Survey
Recorded 7/18/2006 as Document No. 1757726 and Lots 12 & 13 of Dow’s
Subdivision of Blocks 3 and 4 of Dow’s Addition to the City of Beloit,
County of Rock, State of Wisconsin (also known as 1353 Sixth Street, parcel
number 12630190).

Section 2. This ordinance shall take effect and be in force upon its passage and
publication.

Adopted this _______ day of ____________________, 2013.

City Council of the City of Beloit

________________________________________
Charles M. Haynes, Council President

Attest:

______________________________________
Rebecca Houseman LeMire, City Clerk

Published this _______ day of ________________________, 2013.

Effective this _______day of ________________________, 2013.

01-611100-5231-__________



RPB-2013-03, Comprehensive Plan Amendments (SDB), Council Report

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Comprehensive Plan Amendments

Date: February 18, 2013

Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department(s): Community Development

Overview/Background Information:
The School District of Beloit has submitted an application requesting several amendments to the Future Land Use Map
(Map 10) of the City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):
 The applicant is requesting the following amendments to the Future Land Use Map (Map 10) of the City’s

Comprehensive Plan:
o 545 & 549 W. Grand Avenue and 615 Eighth Street – From Neighborhood Commercial to Institutional &

Community Services.
o 619, 625, & 629 Eighth Street and 548 Locust Street – From Single-Family Residential – Urban to

Institutional & Community Services.
o 1203, 1233, 1249, 1253, & 1257 Sixth Street – From Two-Family/Townhouse Residential to Institutional &

Community Services.
o 219 & 225 North Street and 1313, 1317, 1323, 1327, 1333, 1339, 1343, 1349, & 1353 Sixth Street – From

Single-Family Residential – Urban to Institutional & Community Services.
 The proposed amendments for the properties on W. Grand Avenue, Eighth Street, and Locust Street are related

to the proposed expansion of Hackett Elementary School, as illustrated on the attached preliminary site plan. The
proposed amendments are compatible with the existing and planned land uses in the vicinity and will facilitate a
significant improvement and expansion of this elementary school site.

 The proposed amendments for the properties on Sixth Street and North Street are related to the proposed
expansion of the adjacent BMHS campus. This expansion will also require the vacation of an unnamed alley. The
proposed amendments are compatible with the existing and planned residential uses in the vicinity and will
facilitate a logical westward expansion of the BMHS campus.

 The Plan Commission held a public hearing to consider the requested amendments on January 9, 2013 and
voted unanimously (5-0) to adopt the attached Resolution, which recommends approval of the requested
amendments to the Comprehensive Plan.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the
City’s mission.):

 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability:
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:
 City Council consideration and 1

st
reading of the proposed Ordinance

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: The subject properties are (or will become) tax-exempt, so the proposed amendments will
reduce the overall tax base.

Attachments: Ordinance, Plan Commission Resolution, Public Notice, and Staff Report to the Plan Commission.



RPB-2013-03, Comprehensive Plan Amendments (SDB), Council Report



RPB-2013-03, Comprehensive Plan Amendments (SDB), Council Report



RPB-2013-03, Comprehensive Plan Amendments (SDB), Council Report

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: January 9, 2013 Agenda Item: 6 File Number: RPB-2013-03

Request Overview/Background Information:
The School District of Beloit has submitted an application requesting several amendments to the Future Land Use Map
(Map 10) of the City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan.

Wisconsin’s Comprehensive Planning Law, §66.1001 of the Wisconsin Statutes, was signed into law in 1999. This
legislation is commonly known as Wisconsin’s “smart growth” law, although the law does not prescribe or require a
particular type of development pattern. The Comprehensive Planning law requires all cities, towns, and villages that
regulate land use through land use ordinances (e.g. zoning) to adopt a Comprehensive Plan. Comprehensive Plans are
intended to guide development and redevelopment over a 20-year timeframe. The law also requires that land use
decisions be consistent with the plan.

The Beloit City Council approved the City’s Comprehensive Plan in March 2008 after an extensive public participation
program. All land use decisions made by the City of Beloit, including any actions regarding official mapping, local
subdivision regulation, and zoning regulations, must be consistent with the plan. The Beloit City Council established a
process for amendments (minor changes) to the Comprehensive Plan on February 1, 2010. If the Plan Commission votes
to recommend approval of the proposed amendments, the attached Resolution will be forwarded to the City Council for
consideration on February 18, 2013.

Key Issues:
 The applicant is requesting the following amendments to the Future Land Use Map (Map 10) of the City’s

Comprehensive Plan:
o 545 & 549 W. Grand Avenue and 615 Eighth Street – From Neighborhood Commercial to Institutional &

Community Services.
o 619, 625, & 629 Eighth Street and 548 Locust Street – From Single-Family Residential – Urban to

Institutional & Community Services.
o 1203, 1233, 1249, 1253, & 1257 Sixth Street – From Two-Family/Townhouse Residential to Institutional &

Community Services.
o 219 & 225 North Street and 1313, 1317, 1323, 1327, 1333, 1339, 1343, 1349, & 1353 Sixth Street – From

Single-Family Residential – Urban to Institutional & Community Services.
 The following table describes the status of the subject properties:

Property Current Land Use Zoning
Class

Future Land Use Proposed Future Land Use

545 W. Grand
Av

Institutional C-2 Neigh Commercial Inst. & Community Services

549 W. Grand
Av

Commercial (vacant) C-2 Neigh Commercial Inst. & Community Services

615 Eighth
Street

Single-Family Res. C-2 Neigh Commercial Inst. & Community Services

619 Eighth
Street

Single-Family Res. R-1B Single-Family
Res.

Inst. & Community Services

625 Eighth
Street

Duplex R-1B Single-Family
Res.

Inst. & Community Services

629 Eighth
Street

Duplex R-1B Single-Family
Res.

Inst. & Community Services

548 Locust St. Parking Lot R-1B Single-Family
Res.

Inst. & Community Services

1203 Sixth
Street

Vacant Land R-2 Two-Family Res. Inst. & Community Services

1233 Sixth
Street

Vacant Land R-2 Two-Family Res. Inst. & Community Services

1249 Sixth
Street

Vacant Land R-2 Two-Family Res. Inst. & Community Services



RPB-2013-03, Comprehensive Plan Amendments (SDB), Council Report

1253 Sixth
Street

Vacant Land R-2 Two-Family Res. Inst. & Community Services

1257 Sixth
Street

Vacant Land R-2 Two-Family Res. Inst. & Community Services

219 North Street Vacant Land R-1B Single-Family
Res.

Inst. & Community Services

225 North Street Single-Family Res. R-1B Single-Family
Res.

Inst. & Community Services

1313 Sixth
Street

Vacant Land R-1B Single-Family
Res.

Inst. & Community Services

1317 Sixth
Street

Vacant Land R-1B Single-Family
Res.

Inst. & Community Services

1323 Sixth
Street

Vacant Land R-1B Single-Family
Res.

Inst. & Community Services

1327 Sixth
Street

Vacant Land R-1B Single-Family
Res.

Inst. & Community Services

1333 Sixth
Street

Vacant Land R-1B Single-Family
Res.

Inst. & Community Services

1339 Sixth
Street

Single-Family Res. R-1B Single-Family
Res.

Inst. & Community Services

1343 Sixth
Street

Vacant Land R-1B Single-Family
Res.

Inst. & Community Services

1349 Sixth
Street

Single-Family Res. R-1B Single-Family
Res.

Inst. & Community Services

1353 Sixth
Street

Single-Family Res. R-1B Single-Family
Res.

Inst. & Community Services

 The proposed amendments for the properties on W. Grand Avenue, Eighth Street, and Locust Street are related
to the proposed expansion of Hackett Elementary School, as illustrated on the attached preliminary site plan.

 The proposed amendments for the properties on Sixth Street and North Street are related to the proposed
expansion of the adjacent BMHS athletic fields. This expansion will also require the vacation of unnamed alleys.

 A Location & Zoning Map and Future Land Use Map for each distinct site are attached to this report.
 Land Use Analysis – Hackett Elementary Amendments

o The proposed amendments would designate the entire block (including the Hackett parcel) as appropriate
for Institutional & Community Services. This would allow the district to rezone the subject properties to
PLI, Public Lands & Institutions District, demolish the existing structures, and expand the school &
grounds as shown on the attached preliminary site plan.

o Adjacent land uses include residential to the north and northwest of the subject properties and
commercial uses to the south.

o The proposed amendments are compatible with the existing and planned land uses in the vicinity and will
facilitate a significant improvement and expansion of this elementary school site.

 Land Use Analysis – BMHS Campus Amendments
o The proposed amendments would designate the eastern half of the 1200 and 1300 blocks of Sixth Street

as appropriate for Institutional & Community Services. This would allow the district to rezone the subject
properties to PLI, Public Lands & Institutions District in order to expand the BMHS campus.

o The district already owns (or has accepted offers to purchase) the properties that are included in this
application. The district intends to submit a separate application for the remaining properties on the 1200
block once they gain site control.

o The proposed amendments are compatible with the existing and planned residential uses in the vicinity
and will facilitate a logical westward expansion of the BMHS campus.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
 The City’s compliance with the Comprehensive Planning law’s consistency requirement is the impetus for this

request.
 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability: (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact
both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines)

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A



RPB-2013-03, Comprehensive Plan Amendments (SDB), Council Report

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the following proposed amendments to the Future
Land Use Map (Map 10) of the City’s Comprehensive Plan:

1. 545 & 549 W. Grand Avenue and 615 Eighth Street – From Neighborhood Commercial to Institutional &
Community Services.

2. 619, 625, & 629 Eighth Street and 548 Locust Street – From Single-Family Residential – Urban to
Institutional & Community Services.

3. 1203, 1233, 1249, 1253, & 1257 Sixth Street – From Two-Family/Townhouse Residential to Institutional &
Community Services.

4. 219 & 225 North Street and 1313, 1317, 1323, 1327, 1333, 1339, 1343, 1349, & 1353 Sixth Street – From
Single-Family Residential – Urban to Institutional & Community Services.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Location Map (Hackett), FLU Map (Hackett), Location Map (BMHS), FLU Map (BMHS), Photos (Hackett),
Site Plan (Hackett), Public Notice, Mailing List, and Resolution.



RPB-2013-03, Comprehensive Plan Amendments (SDB), Council Report



RPB-2013-03, Comprehensive Plan Amendments (SDB), Council Report

Map 10, Future Land Use (Narrowed to Subject Properties)



RPB-2013-03, Comprehensive Plan Amendments (SDB), Council Report



RPB-2013-03, Comprehensive Plan Amendments (SDB), Council Report

Map 10, Future Land Use (Narrowed to Subject Properties)



RPB-2013-03, Comprehensive Plan Amendments (SDB), Council Report

545 & 549 W. Grand Avenue

600 Block of Eighth Street



RPB-2013-03, Comprehensive Plan Amendments (SDB), Council Report

Preliminary Site Plan –
Hackett Expansion







RPB-2013-02, Comprehensive Plan Amendment (501 Prospect Street), Council Report

ORDINANCE NO. _____________

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE
CITY OF BELOIT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

The City Council of the City of Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin do ordain as follows:

Section 1. The Downtown Future Land Use Map (Map 9) of the City of Beloit
Comprehensive Plan, adopted in §12.015 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of
Beloit, is hereby amended as follows:

The future land use category of the following described land is hereby changed from
Institutional and Community Services to Neighborhood Commercial:

Lots 5 and 6 of Block 74 in the Original Plat of the City of Beloit, Rock
County, Wisconsin (also known as 501 Prospect Street, parcel number
13660050).

Section 2. This ordinance shall take effect and be in force upon its passage and
publication.

Adopted this _______ day of ____________________, 2013.

City Council of the City of Beloit

________________________________________
Charles M. Haynes, Council President

Attest:

______________________________________
Rebecca Houseman LeMire, City Clerk

Published this _______ day of ________________________, 2013.

Effective this _______day of ________________________, 2013.

01-611100-5231-__________



RPB-2013-02, Comprehensive Plan Amendment (501 Prospect Street), Council Report

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Comprehensive Plan Amendment

Date: February 18, 2013

Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department(s): Community Development

Overview/Background Information:
John Wittnebel, on behalf of Hourglass Media, LLC, has submitted an application requesting an amendment to the
Downtown Future Land Use Map (Map 9) of the City’s Comprehensive Plan. The history of the City’s Comprehensive
Plan, along with information on Wisconsin’s Comprehensive Planning law, can be found in the attached Staff Report to
the Plan Commission.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):
 The applicant is requesting the following amendment to the Downtown Future Land Use Map (Map 9) of the City’s

Comprehensive Plan:
o 501 Prospect Street – From Institutional and Community Services to Neighborhood Commercial.

 The following table describes the current status of the subject property:
Property Current Land Use Zoning

Class
Future Land Use Proposed Future Land Use

501 Prospect Vacant Church
Building

PLI, Public Institutional Neighborhood Commercial

 The applicant intends to reuse the former church building as a mixed-use building consisting of retail sales &
service uses, liquor sales, and community service uses. The applicant had previously mentioned establishing a
religious use, but has since changed his mind.

 If the requested amendment is approved, the applicant would be able to rezone the subject property to CBD-1,
Central Business District-Core, which would allow the applicant to engage in or lease space to businesses that
operate Personal Service, Sales, and/or Entertainment-Oriented Retail Sales & Service uses (e.g. café,
performance art center, gift shop, bar and lounge, etc.). In addition to the proposed retail uses, the applicant
intends to locate a nonprofit organization (The Youth Unite) in the building. Nonprofit organizations are classified
as a “community services” use and require a Conditional Use Permit in the CBD-1 District.

 The Plan Commission held a public hearing to consider the requested amendment on January 9, 2013 and voted
(4-0) to adopt the attached Resolution, which recommends approval of the requested amendment to the
Comprehensive Plan.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the
City’s mission.):

 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability:
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:
 City Council consideration and 1

st
reading of the proposed Ordinance

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: Currently the subject property is tax-exempt due to its previous use as a church. However, if
the Comprehensive Plan Amendment is approved, the applicant will an opportunity to rezone the property for commercial
purposes, at which point, the subject property will be added to the City’s tax base.

Attachments: Ordinance, Plan Commission Resolution, Public Notice, and Staff Report to the Plan Commission.



RPB-2013-02, Comprehensive Plan Amendment (501 Prospect Street), Council Report



RPB-2013-02, Comprehensive Plan Amendment (501 Prospect Street), Council Report



RPB-2013-02, Comprehensive Plan Amendment (501 Prospect Street), Council Report

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: January 9, 2013 Agenda Item: 4 File Number: RPB-2013-02

Request Overview/Background Information:
John Wittnebel, on behalf of Hourglass Media, LLC, has submitted an application requesting an amendment to the
Downtown Future Land Use Map (Map 9) of the City’s Comprehensive Plan.

Wisconsin’s Comprehensive Planning Law, §66.1001 of the Wisconsin Statutes, was signed into law in 1999. This
legislation is commonly known as Wisconsin’s “smart growth” law, although the law does not prescribe or require a
particular type of development pattern. The Comprehensive Planning law requires all cities, towns, and villages that
regulate land use through land use ordinances (e.g. zoning) to adopt a Comprehensive Plan. Comprehensive Plans are
intended to guide development and redevelopment over a 20-year timeframe. The law also requires that land use
decisions be consistent with the adopted plan, a requirement that became effective in 2010.

The Beloit City Council approved the City’s Comprehensive Plan in March 2008 after an extensive public participation
program. All land use decisions made by the City of Beloit, including any actions regarding official mapping, local
subdivision regulation, and zoning regulations, must be consistent with the plan. The Beloit City Council established a
process for amendments (minor changes) to the Comprehensive Plan on February 1, 2010. The state law requires that
the Plan be updated at least once every ten years. As opposed to an amendment, an update is often a substantial re-write
of the entire document and maps.

This public meeting of the Plan Commission serves as the second step in the process to amend the Comprehensive Plan.
If the Plan Commission votes to recommend approval of the proposed amendment, the attached Resolution will be
forwarded to the City Council for consideration during the regularly scheduled meeting on February 18, 2013.

Key Issues:
 The applicant is requesting the following amendment to the Downtown Future Land Use Map (Map 9) of the City’s

Comprehensive Plan:
o 501 Prospect Street – From Institutional and Community Services to Neighborhood Commercial.

 The following table describes the status of the subject property:

Property Current Land
Use

Zoning
Class

Future Land Use Proposed Future Land Use

501 Prospect
Street

Vacant Church
Building

PLI, Public Institutional Neighborhood Commercial

 The property that is the subject of this request is the former First Presbyterian Church. The applicant recently
purchased the property and intends to reuse the former church building as a mixed use building consisting of
retail sales & service uses, liquor sales, community service uses, and a religious use.

 Planning staff met with the applicant to discuss this proposal, and informed the applicant that the property would
have to be rezoned, since the zoning classification at the time (PLI, Public Lands & Institutions District) did not
allow commercial uses. A commercial zoning classification is required for the proposed uses. However, the
Comprehensive Plan recommends Institutional & Community Services use for the subject property. Therefore,
due to the consistency requirement discussed above, the property may not be rezoned without first amending the
Comprehensive Plan.

 As mentioned above, the applicant wants the flexibility to engage in or lease space to businesses that operate
Personal Service, Sales, and/or Entertainment-Oriented Retail Sales & Service uses (e.g. café, performance art
center, gift shop, bar and lounge, etc.). These uses are prohibited in the PLI District but permitted by right in the
CBD-1 District. The current zoning classification (PLI) is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan; however, the
applicant is requesting an amendment to the Comprehensive Plan, which, if approved, would allow him to rezone
the property to CBD-1 in the future.

 In addition to the proposed retail uses, the applicant intends to locate a nonprofit organization (The Youth Unite)
in the building, offer health food classes to the community, and allow a church to use space for religious
purposes. These uses are classified as “community services” and “religious,” respectively, and are conditional
uses in the CBD-1 District. This means that if the property is zoned CBD-1 in the future a Conditional Use Permit
must be reviewed and approved by the Plan Commission and City Council before the uses are established.



RPB-2013-02, Comprehensive Plan Amendment (501 Prospect Street), Council Report

 With regard to the proposed religious use, it should be noted that a Conditional Use Permit is only required if the
applicant intends to expand the footprint of the building. The religious use may remain when the property is
rezoned since the building was previously used for religious purposes, and the applicant has no intentions to
expand the building footprint at this time.

 The subject property is surrounded by a variety of uses, including a large apartment building, a college, a church,
office buildings, a mortuary, a bank, a retail store, and a restaurant.

 Planning staff supports the applicant’s efforts to adaptively reuse the building for the proposed uses. The CBD-1,
Central Business District-Core classification provides the most flexibility for the intended reuse of the building.

 The proposed mixed-use building will increase the availability of goods, services, and employment opportunities
and contribute towards the vitality of downtown.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
 The City’s compliance with the Comprehensive Planning law’s consistency requirement is the impetus for this

request.
 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability: (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact
both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines)

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the following proposed amendment to the Downtown
Future Land Use Map (Map 9) of the City’s Comprehensive Plan:

1. 501 Prospect Street – From Institutional and Community Services to Neighborhood Commercial.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Location/Land Use/Zoning Map, Downtown Future Land Use Map, Downtown Future Land Use Category
Description, Photos, Public Notice, Mailing List, and Resolution.



RPB-2013-02, Comprehensive Plan Amendment (501 Prospect Street), Council Report



RPB-2013-02, Comprehensive Plan Amendment (501 Prospect Street), Council Report

Map 9, Downtown Future Land Use



RPB-2013-02, Comprehensive Plan Amendment (501 Prospect Street), Council Report



RPB-2013-02, Comprehensive Plan Amendment (501 Prospect Street), Council Report

Adjacen
(Southw

Adjacen
West & South

Facades

t Uses
est)

t Use (North)



RPB-2013-02, Comprehensive Plan Amendment (501 Prospect Street), Council Report

Adjacent Use (South)

Adjacent Use (West)

Adjacent Use (East)



RPB-2013-02, Comprehensive Plan Amendment (501 Prospect Street), Council Report





ZMA-2013-01, 2208 N. Lee Lane, Council Report

ORDINANCE NO. ____________

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE
ZONING DISTRICT MAP OF THE CITY OF BELOIT

The City Council of the City of Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin do ordain as follows:

Section 1. The Zoning District Map of the City of Beloit, mentioned in the Zoning Code,
Chapter 19 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit, is amended as follows:

The following described land, also known as 2208 N. Lee Lane, is hereby changed from R-1A,
Single-Family Residential District to PLI, Public Lands & Institutions District:

Lots 17 & 18, Block 4 of Bootmaker Manor First Addition to the City of Beloit,
County of Rock, State of Wisconsin. Said parcel contains 0.658 acres, more or
less.

Section 2. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force upon its passage and
publication.

Adopted this 18th day of February, 2013.

City Council of the City of Beloit

Charles M. Haynes, Council President
Attest:

Rebecca Houseman LeMire, City Clerk

Published this ____ day of _________, 2013

Effective this ____ day of _________, 2013

01-611100-5231-



ZMA-2013-01, 2208 N. Lee Lane, Council Report

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Zoning Map Amendment Application for the property located at 2208 N. Lee Lane

Date: February 18, 2013

Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department: Community Development

Overview/Background Information:
The Planning & Building Services Division has initiated an application for a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning
district classification from R-1A, Single-Family Residential District to PLI, Public Lands & Institutions District, for the
property located at 2208 N. Lee Lane.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):
 The subject property is Lee Lane Park, an improved City park. While researching an unrelated matter, Planning

staff discovered that the subject property was not rezoned to PLI when the park was developed.
 The R-1A district is intended to accommodate single-family detached dwellings on moderate to large-sized lots.

The PLI district is a special purpose district that is intended to accommodate public and quasipublic uses (parks,
cemeteries, fire stations, etc.). Although parks are a permitted use in residential zoning districts, the PLI zoning
district classification is much more appropriate for an improved City park.

 Planning staff initiated this application in an effort to correct this discrepancy in accordance with the Zoning Map
Amendment procedures contained in Section 2-300 of the Zoning Ordinance.

 Planning staff mailed the attached Public Notice to the owners of nearby properties. As of this writing, staff has
been contacted by one neighbor who supports the proposed Zoning Map Amendment.

 The Plan Commission reviewed this item on February 6, 2013 and voted unanimously (6-0) to recommend
approval of this Zoning Map Amendment.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
The Comprehensive Plan recommends Parks & Open Space uses and a zoning district classification of PLI for the subject
property. This proposed Zoning Map Amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, as required by Section
66.1001(3) of Wisconsin Statutes.

Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability: (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact
both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines)

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:
 City Council consideration and 1

st
and 2

nd
readings of the proposed Ordinance

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Ordinance and Staff Report to the Plan Commission



ZMA-2013-01, 2208 N. Lee Lane, Council Report

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: February 6, 2013 Agenda Item: 5 File Number: ZMA-2013-01

Applicant: Planning & Building
Services Division

Owner: City of Beloit Location: 2208 N. Lee Lane

Current Zoning: R-1A, Single-Family
Residential District
Proposed Zoning: PLI, Public Lands
& Institutions District

Existing Land Use: Park Parcel Size: 0.66 Acre

Request Overview/Background Information:
The Planning & Building Services Division has initiated an application for a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning
district classification from R-1A, Single-Family Residential District to PLI, Public Lands & Institutions District, for the
property located at 2208 N. Lee Lane.

The attached Location & Zoning Map shows the location of the subject property and the zoning of the surrounding area.
The adjacent zoning and land uses are as follows:

 North: R-1A, Single-Family Residential District; Single-Family Dwellings
 South: R-1A, Single-Family Residential District; Single-Family Dwellings
 East: R-1A, Single-Family Residential District; Single-Family Dwellings
 West: R-1A, Single-Family Residential District; Church

The Zoning Ordinance directs the Plan Commission to hold a hearing and make a recommendation regarding a Zoning
Map Amendment when the specific site and context are suitable for the uses permitted in the proposed zoning district.

Key Issues:
 The subject property is Lee Lane Park, an improved City park. While researching an unrelated matter, Planning

staff discovered that the subject property was not rezoned to PLI when the park was developed.
 The R-1A district is intended to accommodate single-family detached dwellings on moderate to large-sized lots.

The PLI district is a special purpose district that is intended to accommodate public and quasipublic uses (parks,
cemeteries, fire stations, etc.). Although parks are a permitted use in residential zoning districts, the PLI zoning
district classification is much more appropriate for an improved City park.

 Planning staff initiated this application in an effort to correct this discrepancy in accordance with the Zoning Map
Amendment procedures contained in Section 2-300 of the Zoning Ordinance.

 Planning staff mailed the attached Public Notice to the owners of nearby properties. As of this writing, staff has
been contacted by one neighbor who supports the proposed Zoning Map Amendment.

 Findings of Fact - Based on Section 2-304 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan Commission shall make a
recommendation based on the following considerations:

a. The existing use of property within the general area of the subject property;
 The subject property is located within an established single-family neighborhood. The

continued use of the subject property as a mini-park is compatible with the existing residential
and institutional uses in the general area.

b. The zoning classification of property within the general area of the subject property;
 The surrounding area, including the church parcel, is zoned R-1A, Single-Family Residential.

If the church ever intends to expand, a Conditional Use Permit will be required in order to
expand in an R-1A district. The proposed PLI zoning district classification is compatible with
the surrounding R-1A district.

c. The suitability of the subject property for the uses permitted under the existing zoning classification;
and

 As an improved City park, the subject property is not suitable for the permitted uses in the R-
1A district (e.g. Single-Family Detached Dwellings and Class 1 Community Living
Arrangements).

d. The trend of development and zoning map amendments in the general area of the subject property.
 The subject property is located within an established residential neighborhood with limited



ZMA-2013-01, 2208 N. Lee Lane, Council Report

institutional uses that has experienced very little development activity during the past decade.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
The Comprehensive Plan recommends Parks & Open Space uses and a zoning district classification of PLI for the subject
property. This proposed Zoning Map Amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, as required by Section
66.1001(3) of Wisconsin Statutes.

Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability: (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact
both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines)

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
Based upon the above Findings of Fact and the City’s Comprehensive Plan, the Planning & Building Services Division
recommends approval of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning district classification from R-1A, Single-Family
Residential District to PLI, Public Lands & Institutions District, for the property located at 2208 N. Lee Lane.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map, Photo, Application, Public Notice, and Mailing List.



ZMA-2013-01, 2208 N. Lee Lane, Council Report



ZMA-2013-01, 2208 N. Lee Lane, Council Report



ZMA-2013-01, 2208 N. Lee Lane, Council Report



ZMA-2013-01, 2208 N. Lee Lane, Council Report



ZMA-2013-01, 2208 N. Lee Lane, Council Report



ZMA-2013-01, 2208 N. Lee Lane, Council Report



Council Report for CU-2013-02, 1623 Park Avenue

RESOLUTION
AUTHORIZING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO ALLOW

INDOOR ALCOHOL SALES IN A C-2, NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL
DISTRICT, FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1623 PARK AVENUE

WHEREAS, the application of Margarita Mora for a Conditional Use Permit to allow indoor alcohol
sales in a C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, for the property located at 1623 Park Avenue, having been
considered by the City Council of the City of Beloit, Wisconsin at a public hearing held for that purpose and
due notice of said hearing having been given by publication as appears by the Proof of Publication on file in
the office of the City Clerk.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the City Council of the City of Beloit, Rock
County, Wisconsin does hereby grant a Conditional Use Permit to allow indoor alcohol sales in a C-2,
Neighborhood Commercial District, for the property located at 1623 Park Avenue in the City of Beloit, for the
following described premises:

North 46-feet of Lots 1, 2, 3 & 4 of Block 3 in Riverside Addition to the City of Beloit, County of Rock, State
of Wisconsin. Said parcel contains 0.1679 acre, more or less.

As a condition of granting the Conditional Use Permit, the City Council does hereby stipulate the following
conditions and restrictions upon the Conditional Use, which are hereby deemed necessary for the public
interest:

1. This Conditional Use Permit authorizes indoor alcohol sales within the existing building located at 1623
Park Avenue.

2. Alcohol sales shall remain secondary to the sale of grocery items. The floor area (including coolers) used
to store and display alcohol shall not exceed twenty-five (25) percent of the building’s (including coolers)
floor area.

3. The applicant shall obtain and retain all applicable liquor licenses while the conditional use is established
and maintained.

4. Before the indoor alcohol use is established, the off-street parking lot shall be striped in epoxy paint that is
white in color and maintained during the applicant’s tenure at the subject property. Each parking space
shall be a minimum of 9-feet by 18-feet in size.

5. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by the Plan
Commission and City Council by amending this Conditional Use Permit. The Planning and Building
Services Director may approve minor changes administratively and allow accessory structures and uses
that comply with and meet all of the standards and requirements of the City of Beloit Municipal Code.

Adopted this 18th day of February, 2013.

BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

____
Charles M. Haynes, Council President

ATTEST:

_____
Rebecca Houseman LeMire, City Clerk



Council Report for CU-2013-02, 1623 Park Avenue

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Conditional Use Permit Application for the property located at 1623 Park Avenue

Date: February 18, 2013

Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department: Community Development

Overview/Background Information:
Magarita Mora, the operator of Santa Rosa Grocery Store, has filed an application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow indoor
alcohol sales in a C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, for the property located at 1623 Park Avenue.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):
 The Santa Rosa Grocery Store is located at the intersection of Park Avenue and Washburn Street, and has been

in operation since 2008. The building is located in the Merrill Neighborhood and buffers residential properties along
Washburn Street from Park Avenue.

 The grocery store offers a variety of meats, food, and other household items to its customers. The applicant would
like an opportunity to offer and sell beer to her customers.

 Residents from the Merrill Neighborhood have raised a number of concerns with the proposed conditional use and are
opposed to the establishment of an indoor alcohol sales use at this location. Some of the neighborhood residents
voiced their concerns during the Plan Commission meeting, and some of their concerns are included in the staff report
to the Plan Commission. Ten neighborhood residents attended the Plan Commission meeting.

 The Plan Commission reviewed this item on February 6, 2013 and voted (6-0) to recommend denial of the Conditional
Use Permit.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s
mission.):

 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will
impact both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:
 City Council consideration and action on the proposed Resolution

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Resolution and Staff Report to the Plan Commission



Council Report for CU-2013-02, 1623 Park Avenue

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: February 6, 2013 Agenda Item: 3 File Number: CU-2013-02

Applicant: Magarita Mora Owner: Eugene & Teresa Kaye Location: 1623 Park Avenue

Existing Zoning: C-2, Neighborhood
Commercial District

Existing Land Use: Convenience Store Parcel Size: 0.16 Acre

Request Overview/Background Information:
Magarita Mora, the operator of Santa Rosa Grocery Store, has filed an application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow indoor
alcohol sales in a C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, for the property located at 1623 Park Avenue. The attached
Location and Zoning Map shows the location of the parcel involved in this application. The adjacent zoning and land uses are
as follows:

 North: C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District; Beloit Check Cashing Store
 South: C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District; House of Good Food, Clippers & Curls, and The Children’s Ark

Daycare
 East: R-1B, Single-Family Residential District; Single-Family Dwellings
 West: M-2, General Manufacturing District; American Construction Metals (ACM)

Indoor alcohol sales is a conditional use in the C-2 District. If the Conditional Use Permit is approved, the City Council is
authorized to impose conditions it deems necessary to reduce or minimize any potential adverse effects on surrounding
properties.

Key Issues:
 The Santa Rosa Grocery Store is located at the intersection of Park Avenue and Washburn Street, and has been in

operation since 2008. The building is located in the Merrill Neighborhood and buffers residential properties along
Washburn Street from Park Avenue.

 The subject property is connected to a commercial strip building that is host to three businesses and a vacant
commercial space. The businesses include a fast food restaurant, a barbershop, and a child daycare.

 All businesses share an off-street parking lot in the rear of the building that is accessible from Washburn Street. The
parking lot includes approximately nine (9) concrete wheel stops in addition to an estimated six (6) parking spaces for
a sum of 15 parking spaces that are available to accommodate patrons. The parking lot is not striped.

 In addition to the availability of off-street parking, there is on-street parking in the front of the building on Park Avenue.
 The grocery store offers a variety of meats, food, and other household items to its customers and nearby residents,

and is open for business every day from 8AM to 9PM.
 The applicant would like an opportunity to offer and sell beer to her customers.
 If a Conditional Use Permit is granted, the applicant must also obtain an Alcohol Beverage License before alcoholic

beverages may be legally sold on the subject property.
 The City’s Review Agents have reviewed this application and have submitted the following comments or concerns:

o City Engineer – The addition of an alcohol sales use to the existing grocery store will not generate additional
traffic. Grocery stores or convenience stores similar to the Santa Rosa Grocery Store will generate an average
of 31 trips per day.

o Police Department - There may be concerns that arise from the proposed sale of alcohol at this property
because of its location near the Merrill Neighborhood, and in the recent past, residents have voiced their
opposition to the sale of alcohol in nearby commercial establishments. Residents living near this establishment
may do the same and oppose the sale of alcohol.

o City Clerk – If the proposed Conditional Use Permit is granted, the applicant would be required to obtain an
Alcohol Beverage License before she could sell alcohol. In addition, the State of Wisconsin has a 90-day
residency requirement before one can apply for the license. Since Ms. Mora lives in Illinois, she is ineligible
and cannot apply for an Alcohol Beverage License. She was notified of this requirement in a letter dated
January 15, 2013.

 The attached Public Notice was sent to sixteen nearby property owners. Planning staff received comments from
concerned residents about the potential detriment the sale of alcohol at this location may cause upon the Merrill
Neighborhood. In addition, concerns were raised about the distance between the grocery store and a neighboring child



Council Report for CU-2013-02, 1623 Park Avenue

daycare (The Children’s Ark Daycare). The daycare is located approximately 48-feet south of the grocery store.
Moreover, residents were concerned about the potential consumption of alcohol by children who frequent the grocery
store and eat at the daily lunch counter on a regular basis. Residents are not confident that the store will operate in a
manner to prevent underage drinking if a conditional use is granted and an Alcohol Beverage License is obtained. In
conclusion, residents do not support the establishment of the proposed indoor alcohol sales use at this location.

 Findings of Fact
Based on Section 2-504 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan Commission shall make a recommendation based on
the following considerations:

a. Whether the establishment, maintenance, or operation of the conditional use will be detrimental to or
endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare;

 Planning staff is concerned that introducing alcohol sales into this neighborhood may endanger
public health, safety, morals, comfort, and general welfare. Residents’ concerns discussed above
about the neighboring child daycare, close proximity to a residential neighborhood, and potential
manner of operation are relevant considerations.

 The current use (a grocery store) supports the neighborhood by offering a range of products that
meet the needs of the neighborhood. Planning staff feels that the addition of alcohol sales at this
location may deviate from this mission by increasing the availability of alcohol that may ultimately
have a negative impact upon the neighborhood and surrounding land uses.

b. Whether the conditional use will be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate
vicinity for purposes already permitted;

 The conditional use may injure the use and enjoyment of nearby properties.
c. Whether the conditional use will substantially diminish or impair property values within the neighborhood

of the subject property;
 The conditional use is not expected to diminish or impair property values in the neighborhood.

d. Whether the establishment of the conditional use will impede the normal and orderly development and
improvement of the surrounding property;

 Not Applicable.
e. Whether the exterior architectural design or site layout of the proposed conditional use is so dissimilar or

otherwise incompatible with existing or proposed development in the immediate neighborhood that it will
cause a depreciation in property values;

 Not Applicable.
f. Whether adequate utilities, access roads, drainage or other necessary facilities will be available to serve

the proposed use at the time of its occupancy or use;
 Adequate facilities and infrastructure are available to serve the conditional use.

g. Whether adequate measures will be taken to minimize traffic congestion; and
 The establishment of the conditional use is not expected to generate a significant increase in

traffic.
 The subject property has adequate off-street parking and on-street parking to accommodate the

existing land uses. However, as mentioned above, the off-street parking lot is not striped.
Therefore, staff recommends that the off-street parking lot be striped in order to improve traffic
circulation and prevent traffic congestion.

h. Whether the conditional use will comply with all applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance.
 The conditional use will comply with all other applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
The Comprehensive Plan recommends Neighborhood Commercial uses and a zoning district classification of C-2 for the
subject property. The underlying zoning district classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, as required by Section
66.1001(3) of Wisconsin Statutes. Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability: (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both
the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines)

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A



Council Report for CU-2013-02, 1623 Park Avenue

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning and Building Services Division recommends denial of a Conditional Use Permit to allow indoor alcohol sales in a
C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, for the property located at 1623 Park Avenue, based on the above Findings of Fact.

However, in the event that the City Council decides to issue a Conditional Use Permit to allow an indoor alcohol sales use in a
C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, for the property located at 1623 Park Avenue, the Planning & Building Services
Division recommend the following conditions of approval:

1. This Conditional Use Permit authorizes indoor alcohol sales within the existing building located at 1623 Park Avenue.
2. Alcohol sales shall remain secondary to the sale of grocery items. The floor area (including coolers) used to store and

display alcohol shall not exceed twenty-five (25) percent of the building’s (including coolers) floor area.
3. The applicant shall obtain and retain all applicable liquor licenses while the conditional use is established and

maintained.
4. Before the indoor alcohol use is established, the off-street parking lot shall be striped in epoxy paint that is white in

color and maintained during the applicant’s tenure at the subject property. Each parking space shall be a minimum of
9-feet by 18-feet in size.

5. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by the Plan Commission and
City Council by amending this Conditional Use Permit. The Planning and Building Services Director may approve minor
changes administratively and allow accessory structures and uses that comply with and meet all of the standards and
requirements of the City of Beloit Municipal Code.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Photographs, Location & Zoning Map, Application City Clerk Notice, Public Notice, and Mailing List.



Council Report for CU-2013-02, 1623 Park Avenue

Off-Street Parking Lot

Off-Street Parking Lot

Santa Rosa Grocery Store



Council Report for CU-2013-02, 1623 Park Avenue

Businesses Located South of Grocery Store

Check Cashing Store Located North of Grocery Store



Council Report for CU-2013-02, 1623 Park Avenue

Residential Properties Located East of Grocery Store

ACM Property Located West of Grocery Store



Council Report for CU-2013-02, 1623 Park Avenue



Council Report for CU-2013-02, 1623 Park Avenue



Council Report for CU-2013-02, 1623 Park Avenue



Council Report for CU-2013-02, 1623 Park Avenue

Notice from City Clerk



Council Report for CU-2013-02, 1623 Park Avenue



Council Report for CU-2013-02, 1623 Park Avenue



PROCEEDINGS OF THE BELOIT CITY COUNCIL
100 State Street, Beloit WI 53511
Monday, February 4, 2013

Presiding: Charles M. Haynes
Present: Sheila De Forest, Chuck Kincaid, Kevin D. Leavy, David F. Luebke, Mark Spreitzer, and

James E. Van De Bogart
Absent: None

1. The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. in the Forum at Beloit City Hall.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. SPECIAL ORDERS OF THE DAY/ANNOUNCEMENTS

a. Vice President Spreitzer presented a proclamation recognizing the Beloit International Film
Festival to be held February 14-17, 2013, to Nancy Heidt, Vice President of the BIFF Board of
Directors. File 7148

b. President Haynes presented the State of the City Report. He spoke of the 2012 achievements in
Beloit in terms of dedication, determination, persistence, and patience. He said that the City and its
partners are dedicating to developing and growing the economic base. He said that the City showed
determination by approving a referendum to improve the schools. He said that the Riverside Park
improvements took nearly two decades of persistence. He cited the Intergovernmental Agreement
with the Ho-Chunk Nation, the Hampton Inn, and the new Dog Park as examples of projects that
required patience. He also discussed the challenges that will be seen in 2013 and how the City will
move forward using dedication, determination, persistence, and patience. File 7757

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS – none

5. CITIZENS PARTICIPATION – none

6. CONSENT AGENDA

Councilor Luebke made a motion to adopt the Consent Agenda, which consists of items 6.a. through 6.d.
Councilor Van De Bogart seconded, and the motion carried that the Consent Agenda be accepted,
approved, adopted, or referred and acted upon as required by state and local codes by a vote of 7-0.

a. The Minutes of the Special Meeting of January 17, 2013, and the Regular Meeting of January 22,
2013 were approved.

b. The application for Conditional Use Permit to allow indoor alcohol sales in a C-2, Neighborhood
Commercial District, for the property located at 1623 Park Avenue was referred to the Plan
Commission. File 8542

c. The application for a Zoning Map Amendment to change the Zoning District Classification from R-
1A, Single-family Residential District, to PLI, Public Lands & Institutions District, for the property
located at 2208 N. Lee Lane, was referred to the Plan Commission. File 8228

d. The resolution setting a date for a Public Hearing for the Vacation of an Unnamed North-South Alley
in the block bound by North Street, Sixth Street, Olympian Boulevard, and Fourth Street in the City of
Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin, was accepted and referred to the Plan Commission. File 8580

7. LICENSES

a. Deputy City Attorney Elizabeth Krueger presented a resolution Setting Return Date and
Authorizing Issuance of Summons for Alcohol License Sanction Hearing for Speedway, LLC,
d/b/a Speedway #4293, 2781 Milwaukee Road, Nancy A. Bryant, Agent. Ms. Krueger recommended
that the Sanction Hearing be set for Tuesday, February 12, 2013, at 6:30 p.m. in the Forum at City



Hall. Councilor Van De Bogart made a motion to adopt the resolution, and Councilor De Forest
seconded. The motion carried 7-0. File 8542

8. ORDINANCES – none

9. APPOINTMENTS – none

10. COUNCILOR ACTIVITIES AND UPCOMING EVENTS
 Councilor De Forest said that she is looking forward to attending the Beloit International Film

Festival, especially the Silent Film Showcase. She said that the Rock River Trail Initiative is meeting
in South Beloit on March 1

st
and invited the public to attend.

 Councilor Van De Bogart encouraged residents to attend and participate in BIFF by volunteering.
 Councilor Kincaid said that he will be attending BIFF and that there are some great venues and

movies this year. He said that he also attended a legislative breakfast with Mark Pocan.
 Councilor Luebke lamented on the loss of several Beloit icons in the last week. He said that Bill

Dommer, Fred Mathews, Bill Behling, and Frank Marsden gave much of themselves to Beloit for
many years and will be missed.

 Councilor Spreitzer echoed Councilor Luebke’s comments and said that Frank Marsden was a
mentor to him. He also said that he is looking forward to attending BIFF.

 Councilor Haynes encouraged the public to continue to support BIFF. He said that he had an
unpleasant conversation with a resident regarding snow emergencies and reminded residents to be
proactive when it is snowing and remove their vehicles from the streets.

11. CITY MANAGER’S PRESENTATION – none

12. REPORTS FROM BOARD AND CITY OFFICERS

a. Police Chief Norm Jacobs presented a resolution amending the 2013 Capital Improvement Budget
and appropriating funds from the Police Confiscated Fund to Purchase Mobile Video Recording
Devices Equipment. He said that this is an opportunity to replace all of the devices at one time,
which will increase efficiency and effectiveness of training. Councilor Leavy made a motion to adopt
the resolution, and Councilor Luebke seconded. Councilor De Forest asked how this project will be
funded, and Chief Jacobs said that the Police Confiscated Fund will be used and that this fund may
only be used for otherwise unfunded projects or equipment but not for operations or salaries. The
motion carried 7-0. File 8570

b. Transit Director Michelle Gavin presented a resolution authorizing the issuance of a Purchase Order
for the replacement of two Transit Buses in 2014. She indicated that the lead time on ordering buses
is 16-20 months and that this resolution would allow the City or order two buses to replace those
from 1997 with very high mileage. She said that a federal grant will pay for 80 percent of the cost of
the buses. Councilor De Forest made a motion to adopt the resolution, and Councilor Spreitzer
seconded. Councilor De Forest asked about the anticipated discount if the buses are ordered by the
end of February, and Ms. Gavin indicated that the City could order with the City of Racine at 2012
prices which would save roughly two percent of the total cost. Councilor Van De Bogart asked if we
are purchasing full-sized buses. Ms. Gavin indicated that we purchase the full-sized busses because
the cost difference is minimal, the fuel cost and efficiency is the same, and that these buses are
more durable and can hold more passengers for peak periods. Ms. Gavin said that that a bus needs
1/5 the amount of fuel per person than a passenger car. The motion carried 7-0. File 8574/8570

13. At 7:27 p.m., Councilor Leavy made a motion to adjourn the meeting, and Councilor Spreitzer seconded.
The motion carried 7-0.

Rebecca Houseman LeMire, City Clerk

www.ci.beloit.wi.us
Date approved by Council:













RPB-2013-05, Connections City Center Plan, Council Referral

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Review and consideration of the Connections: City Center Plan – Council Referral to the Plan Commission

Date: February 18, 2013

Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department: Community Development

Overview/Background Information:
The Connections: City Center Plan is a plan initiated by Beloit 2020 in an effort to guide the physical development and
improvement of bike and pedestrian paths in the “Confluence Corridor” located between the City of Beloit and City of South
Beloit. The Confluence Corridor includes roughly 930-acres of land between both cities. In the City of Beloit the boundaries of
the Confluence Corridor includes lands east of Rock River, west of IL-251, south of East Grand Avenue to the Stateline border
into the City of South Beloit.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):
 The purpose of the plan is to revitalize the Confluence Corridor area by enhancing the connectivity and mobility of bike

and pedestrian paths.
 The Connections plan is an element to the City Center Plan (A Vision for the City Center) and further advances the

goal to create physical linkages to places within and beyond the City Center.
 Public meetings and workshops were held during the development of the plan from 2011 to 2012.
 A copy of the plan is available on the City’s homepage.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s
mission.):

 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #1 & #4.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will
impact both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:
 Referral to the Plan Commission for the February 20, 2013 meeting
 This item will most likely return to the City Council for possible action on March 4, 2013

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments:



CSM-2013-02, 1650 Lee Lane, Council Referral

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Certified Survey Map (CSM) for the property located at 1650 Lee Lane – Council Referral to the Plan
Commission

Date: February 18, 2013

Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department: Community Development

Overview/Background Information:
R.H. Batterman & Co., Inc. has submitted an Application for the Review of a Minor Subdivision and a 2-Lot Certified
Survey Map (CSM) for the property located at 1650 Lee Lane.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):
 The intent of the proposed CSM is to create a buildable parcel (Lot 1) for a proposed cancer center that will be

operated by Beloit Memorial Hospital and UW Health. Proposed Lot 2 includes the existing clinic building and
parking lot and several acres of vacant land.

 Proposed Lot 1 is 5.288 acres in area and includes 496.84 feet of frontage on Lee Lane, 333.65 feet of frontage
on Milwaukee Road, and a public sidewalk easement near the stoplight that is 8 feet wide and approximately 114
feet long.

 Proposed Lot 2 is 10.898 acres in area and includes 639.23 feet of frontage on Lee Lane.
 The proposed CSM must be reviewed by the City Council because of the perpetual public sidewalk easement.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the
City’s mission.):

 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it
will impact both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:
 Referral to the Plan Commission for the February 20, 2013 meeting
 This item will most likely return to the City Council for consideration on March 4, 2013

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Proposed CSM and Application



CSM-2013-02, 1650 Lee Lane, Council Referral



CSM-2013-02, 1650 Lee Lane, Council Referral



CSM-2013-02, 1650 Lee Lane, Council Referral



CSM-2013-02, 1650 Lee Lane, Council Referral



































RESOLUTION
APPROVING FARM LEASES

BETWEEN THE CITY OF BELOIT
AND TWIN OAKS FARM

The City Council of the City of Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin, hereby resolves that the
attached Farm Leases between the City of Beloit and Twin Oaks Farm be, and the same is
hereby, approved.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager of the City of Beloit be, and he is
hereby, authorized to enter into the Farm Leases on behalf of the City of Beloit.

Adopted at Beloit, Wisconsin this 18th day of February, 2013.

City Council of the City of Beloit

_________________________________
Charles M. Haynes, Council President

ATTEST:

_______________________________
Rebecca Houseman LeMire, City Clerk



Revised 01-10-08

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Resolution approving farm leases between Twin Oaks Farm and the City of Beloit.

Date: 2/18/13

Presenter(s): Andrew Janke Department(s): Economic Development

Overview/Background Information:
Staff is recommending approval of two farm Leases to Twin Oaks Farm for land owned by the City of Beloit. In late 2012 the
City of Beloit bought 2 parcels of land from MLG totaling approximately 56 acres. Both parcels are located in TID #10 and in
or adjacent to the Gateway Business Park. Parcel A contains 11.96 tillable acres and is located south of Eagles Ridge Drive.
Parcel B contains 28.41 tillable acres and is located east on Gateway Boulevard North. (See attached map)

Key Issues (maximum of 5):

1. RFPs were sent January 15, 2013, to 14 farming operations; with the deadline of 5:00 PM, January 31, 2013, the
following bids for each farm lease were received.

2. Gateway Business Park II - A
Bid A: $205.00 per acre for $5,824.05 - (Jason and Jana Henschler)
Bid B: $150.00 per acre for $4,261.50 - (Robert Lang)
Bid C: $205.46 per acre for $5,837.12 - (Joe Rebout)
Bid D: $251.01 per acre for $7,131.20 - (Gary and Michelle Hahn)
Bid E: $264.00 per acre for $7,500.24 – (Twin Oaks Farm)
Bid F: $275.00 per acre for $7,812.75 – (Walsh Agricultural Holdings, LLC)

3. Gateway Business Park II - B
Bid A: NA (Jason and Jana Henschler)
Bid B: $100.00 per acre for $1,196.00 - (Robert Lang)
Bid C: $205.46 per acre for $2,457.30 - (Joe Rebout)
Bid D: $251.01 per acre for $3,002.08 - (Gary and Michelle Hahn)
Bid E: $264.00 per acre for $3,157.44 – (Twin Oaks Farm)
Bid F: $185.00 per acre for $2,212.60 – (Walsh Agricultural Holdings, LLC)

4. The highest overall bidder when both parcels are combined is Twin Oaks Farm for a total annual rental rate of
$10,657.68. (See attached Bid Sheet)

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s
mission.): As the leased land is planned for future development, it supports Goal #2 since it could leverage new private
investment and job creation. Leasing the land for crop use also supports Goal # 1 as it supports Beloit’s eco-municipality
focus on sustainability, stewardship of City Resources, and protecting the natural environment.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will
impact both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – These leases support the reduction of dependence on fossil fuel as some
of land may be used to grow corn that may be used in the production of ethanol.

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – NA
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – The proposed development will not

impact wetlands or sensitive wildlife.
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – Some of the crops harvested will

meet human needs by being put into food production.

Action required/Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the resolution.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: As these two properties are located in TID #10 income from both leases will be directed to TID
#10.



1

GATEWAY FARM

LEASE II-A

THIS LEASE is made this 1st of March, 2013 by and between the City of Beloit, a

Wisconsin municipal corporation, with its principal place of business located at 100 State Street,

Beloit, Wisconsin 53511 (hereinafter referred to as "Lessor") and Twin Oaks Farm, with a

principal place of business located at 5816 East Buss Road, Clinton, WI 53525 (hereinafter

referred to as "Lessee").

1. Leased Premises: Lessor hereby leases to Lessee the property described as Parcel

“A” on Exhibit A (map) which is attached hereto. The leased premises consist of

approximately 28.41 tillable acres of farmland (shown as 15.75 ac, 3.99 ac and 8.67 ac). There

are no buildings on the leased premises as shown on Exhibit A.

2. Term: This lease shall commence upon the date of execution hereof and end on

December 31, 2013. The lease may be extended for two (2) additional one-year terms with the first

commencing January 1, 2014 and ending on December 31, 2014 and the second commencing January

1, 2015 and ending December 31, 2015; provided that the Lessee provides the Lessor with written

notice of Lessee’s intent to renew not more than 90 days nor less than 30 days prior to the expiration

of the lease term subject to extension. Each extension shall be on the same terms and conditions

herein. No extension will be allowed should Lessee be in default of any term or condition of the lease

at the time of notice of intent to renew, or if the Lessee has been more than 30 days late in any

payment obligation hereunder.

3. Rent: The Lessee shall pay to the Lessor annual rent for the lease of the property

described above the sum of $7,500.24 payable at the Office of the City Treasurer, City Hall (Attn:



2

Finance), 100 State Street, Beloit, Wisconsin, as follows:

$3,750.12 on or before May 20, 2013; and

$3,750.12 on or before November 18, 2013.

If the lease is extended for 2014 and again for 2015, payments will be as follows:

$3,750.12 on or before May 20, 2014; and

$3,750.12 on or before November 18, 2014; and

$3,750.12 on or before May 20, 2015; and

$3,750.12 on or before November 18, 2015.

4. Rent Abatement: Lessor shall have the right to sell any portion of the leased

premises during the term of this lease, and upon closing of such sale this lease shall automatically

terminate with respect to that portion of the premises that is sold. Lessee hereby permits the Lessor

and any prospective buyer or their agents or designees of the leased premises to enter upon the

same for the purpose of conducting soil borings and/or surveying the leased premises, provided

that buyer gives Lessee five days’ notice of buyer's intent to enter thereon. Neither Lessor nor

the prospective buyer shall be liable for any crop damage resulting from soil borings or

surveying activities, provided that such damage is kept to the minimum amount necessary to

accomplish the same. If Lessor sells any portion of the leased premises during the term of this

lease, Lessor shall require the buyer, as a condition of sale, to either:

(a) Permit Lessee to harvest the crops during the term of this lease,

provided however that such harvest shall occur promptly upon crop

maturity; or in the alternative

(b) Pay Lessee for any crops planted but not to be harvested should Lessee



3

and buyer reach a mutual agreement to compensate Lessee for such

unharvested crops .

5. Condition of Premises: Lessee has examined the premises and knows the

condition thereof. No representations have been made to Lessee by Lessor regarding the

condition of the property.

6. Permitted Uses: The leased premises shall be used solely for the purpose of

growing crops. Lessee agrees that it will not permit any hazardous substance or hazardous

materials to be discharged upon the leased premises and will not commit waste upon the

premises.

7. Indemnification: Lessee agrees to hold Lessor harmless and to indemnify

Lessor for any liability arising from Lessee's use of the premises during the term of this lease.

8. Sublease and Assignment Prohibited: Lessee may not assign this lease or sublet

the premises without the written consent of the Lessor.

9. Best Management Practices: Lessee agrees to control soil erosion and to use best

management practices during the term of this lease.

10. Insurance - Certificate of Insurance: Lessee shall, at Lessee's expense, procure

the following insurance policies from insurance companies licensed to do business in the State of

Wisconsin, in amounts and coverages not less than hereinafter set forth:

(a) General Liability Insurance:

(1) Each Occurrence Limit $1,000,000.00



4

(b) Automobile Liability Insurance: The Lessee shall provide Automobile

Liability insurance covering all vehicles used by Lessee in the amount of

$500,000.00.

Lessee shall provide Lessor with a certificate of insurance. The certificate shall name the

Lessor as certificate holder and shall unequivocally provide that the policies of insurance shall not

be canceled or altered without sixty (60) days prior written notice to Lessor. Said certificate shall

be provided to Lessor at the time of execution hereof and further certificates shall be provided

immediately upon expiration of any policy or policies subject to the initial certificate.

11. Removal of Crops: Lessee shall remove all crops from the leased premises prior

to the expiration of this lease. Any crops or equipment remaining on the leased premises at

the time of expiration of this lease shall be deemed abandoned and become the property of the

Lessor.

12. Storage of Farm Equipment: Lessee shall not store farm equipment or other

moveable property on the leased premises at any time. However, during the planting and

harvesting seasons, farm equipment may be kept on the premises overnight, but only while the

Lessee is actively engaged in planting or harvesting.

13. Hunting Prohibited: Neither party shall permit any person to enter the leased

premises for the purpose of hunting, shooting or capturing any wild animals during the term of

this lease. Lessee may, as Lessor's agent, post "No Hunting" signs on the property.

14. Default: If Lessee commits waste or stores any farm equipment or moveable property

upon the leased premises in violation of this lease, Lessor shall give Lessee five (5) days’ notice

to cure Lessee's default. If Lessee does not cure the default within five (5) days, Lessee shall



5

pay to Lessor a penalty of $100.00 per day for each day that Lessee continues to commit waste

or continues to store equipment or moveable property on the leased premises in violation of

this agreement.

15. Access To Property: Lessee shall access the leased premises via Gateway

Boulevard.

16. Affirmative Action: Lessee agrees to adopt an affirmative action plan to increase

in its partners, associates, and employees members of under-represented groups in all of its

departments, job classifications, and salary categories. In the event that Lessee subcontracts any

portion of this lease, Lessee will include, in its subcontracts, a requirement that its subcontractors

adopt an affirmative action plan. Lessee will also include a requirement that its subcontractors

include a similar requirement in their contracts with their subcontractors. This provision is inserted

herein in compliance with Section 1.09 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit,

and shall be interpreted so as to carry out the intent of that ordinance.

17. Nondiscrimination: Lessee will not discriminate against any qualified employee

or qualified applicant for employment because of race, color, national origin, ancestry, religion, age,

marital status, disability, sex, or sexual orientation. In the event any portion of this lease is

subcontracted by Lessee, Lessee shall include in such subcontract, a provision prohibiting the

subcontractor from discriminating against any qualified employee or qualified applicant for

employment because of race, color, national origin, ancestry, religion, age, marital status,

disability, sex, or sexual orientation. This provision is inserted herein in compliance with Section

1.09 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit, and shall be interpreted so as to carry

out the intent of said ordinance.



6

18. Amendments: This lease may be amended only by written mutual agreement

of the Lessor and Lessee.

19. Notices: Notices to the parties to this lease shall be as follows:

To Lessor: City of Beloit

Attn: Andrew L. Janke, CPM

100 State Street

Beloit, WI 53511

To Lessee: Twin Oaks Farm

Attn: William Kutz

5816 East Buss Road

Clinton, WI 53525

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this lease as of the date first written

above.

LESSOR: CITY OF BELOIT LESSEE:

By: By:
Larry N. Arft, City Manager William Kutz

Attest:

By: _______________________________
Rebecca Houseman LeMire, City Clerk

Approved as to Form:

By: _______________________________
Thomas R. Casper, City Attorney





1

GATEWAY FARM

LEASE II-B

THIS LEASE is made this 1st of March, 2013 by and between the City of Beloit, a

Wisconsin municipal corporation, with its principal place of business located at 100 State Street,

Beloit, Wisconsin 53511 (hereinafter referred to as "Lessor") and Twin Oaks Farm, with a

principal place of business located at 5816 East Buss Road, Clinton, WI 53525 (hereinafter

referred to as "Lessee").

1. Leased Premises: Lessor hereby leases to Lessee the property described as Parcel

B on Exhibit A (map) which is attached hereto. The leased premises consist of approximately

11.96 tillable acres of farmland (shown as 11.96 ac). There are no buildings on the leased

premises as shown on Exhibit A.

2. Term: This lease shall commence upon the date of execution hereof and end on

December 31, 2013. The lease may be extended for two (2) additional one-year terms with the first

commencing January 1, 2014 and ending on December 31, 2014 and the second commencing January

1, 2015 and ending December 31, 2015; provided that the Lessee provides the Lessor with written

notice of Lessee’s intent to renew not more than 90 days nor less than 30 days prior to the expiration

of the lease term subject to extension. Each extension shall be on the same terms and conditions

herein. No extension will be allowed should Lessee be in default of any term or condition of the lease

at the time of notice of intent to renew, or if the Lessee has been more than 30 days late in any

payment obligation hereunder.

3. Rent: The Lessee shall pay to the Lessor annual rent for the lease of the property

described above the sum of $3,157.44 payable at the Office of the City Treasurer, City Hall (Attn:



2

Finance), 100 State Street, Beloit, Wisconsin, as follows:

$1,578.72 on or before May 20, 2013; and

$1,578.72 on or before November 18, 2013.

If the lease is extended for 2014 and again for 2015, payments will be as follows:

$1,578.72 on or before May 20, 2014; and

$1,578.72 on or before November 18, 2014; and

$1,578.72 on or before May 20, 2015; and

$1,578.72 on or before November 18, 2015.

4. Rent Abatement: Lessor shall have the right to sell any portion of the leased

premises during the term of this lease, and upon closing of such sale this lease shall automatically

terminate with respect to that portion of the premises that is sold. Lessee hereby permits the Lessor

and any prospective buyer or their agents or designees of the leased premises to enter upon the

same for the purpose of conducting soil borings and/or surveying the leased premises, provided

that buyer gives Lessee five days’ notice of buyer's intent to enter thereon. Neither Lessor nor

the prospective buyer shall be liable for any crop damage resulting from soil borings or

surveying activities, provided that such damage is kept to the minimum amount necessary to

accomplish the same. If Lessor sells any portion of the leased premises during the term of this

lease, Lessor shall require the buyer, as a condition of sale, to either:

(a) Permit Lessee to harvest the crops during the term of this lease,

provided however that such harvest shall occur promptly upon crop

maturity; or in the alternative

(b) Pay Lessee for any crops planted but not to be harvested should Lessee



3

and buyer reach a mutual agreement to compensate Lessee for such

unharvested crops.

5. Condition of Premises: Lessee has examined the premises and knows the

condition thereof. No representations have been made to Lessee by Lessor regarding the

condition of the property.

6. Permitted Uses: The leased premises shall be used solely for the purpose of

growing crops. Lessee agrees that it will not permit any hazardous substance or hazardous

materials to be discharged upon the leased premises and will not commit waste upon the

premises.

7. Indemnification: Lessee agrees to hold Lessor harmless and to indemnify

Lessor for any liability arising from Lessee's use of the premises during the term of this lease.

8. Sublease and Assignment Prohibited: Lessee may not assign this lease or sublet

the premises without the written consent of the Lessor.

9. Best Management Practices: Lessee agrees to control soil erosion and to use best

management practices during the term of this lease.

10. Insurance - Certificate of Insurance: Lessee shall, at Lessee's expense, procure

the following insurance policies from insurance companies licensed to do business in the State of

Wisconsin, in amounts and coverages not less than hereinafter set forth:

(a) General Liability Insurance:

(1) Each Occurrence Limit $1,000,000.00



4

(b) Automobile Liability Insurance: The Lessee shall provide Automobile

Liability insurance covering all vehicles used by Lessee in the amount of

$500,000.00.

Lessee shall provide Lessor with a certificate of insurance. The certificate shall name the

Lessor as certificate holder and shall unequivocally provide that the policies of insurance shall not

be canceled or altered without sixty (60) days prior written notice to Lessor. Said certificate shall

be provided to Lessor at the time of execution hereof and further certificates shall be provided

immediately upon expiration of any policy or policies subject to the initial certificate.

11. Removal of Crops: Lessee shall remove all crops from the leased premises prior

to the expiration of this lease. Any crops or equipment remaining on the leased premises at

the time of expiration of this lease shall be deemed abandoned and become the property of the

Lessor.

12. Storage of Farm Equipment: Lessee shall not store farm equipment or other

moveable property on the leased premises at any time. However, during the planting and

harvesting seasons, farm equipment may be kept on the premises overnight, but only while the

Lessee is actively engaged in planting or harvesting.

13. Hunting Prohibited: Neither party shall permit any person to enter the leased

premises for the purpose of hunting, shooting or capturing any wild animals during the term of

this lease. Lessee may, as Lessor's agent, post "No Hunting" signs on the property.

14. Default: If Lessee commits waste or stores any farm equipment or moveable property

upon the leased premises in violation of this lease, Lessor shall give Lessee five (5) days’ notice

to cure Lessee's default. If Lessee does not cure the default within five (5) days, Lessee shall



5

pay to Lessor a penalty of $100.00 per day for each day that Lessee continues to commit waste

or continues to store equipment or moveable property on the leased premises in violation of

this agreement.

15. Access To Property: Lessee shall access the leased premises from Eagles Ridge

Drive via the City of Beloit water tower site adjacent to the leased premises.

16. Affirmative Action: Lessee agrees to adopt an affirmative action plan to increase

in its partners, associates, and employees members of under-represented groups in all of its

departments, job classifications, and salary categories. In the event that Lessee subcontracts any

portion of this lease, Lessee will include, in its subcontracts, a requirement that its subcontractors

adopt an affirmative action plan. Lessee will also include a requirement that its subcontractors

include a similar requirement in their contracts with their subcontractors. This provision is inserted

herein in compliance with Section 1.09 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit,

and shall be interpreted so as to carry out the intent of that ordinance.

17. Nondiscrimination: Lessee will not discriminate against any qualified employee

or qualified applicant for employment because of race, color, national origin, ancestry, religion, age,

marital status, disability, sex, or sexual orientation. In the event any portion of this lease is

subcontracted by Lessee, Lessee shall include in such subcontract, a provision prohibiting the

subcontractor from discriminating against any qualified employee or qualified applicant for

employment because of race, color, national origin, ancestry, religion, age, marital status,

disability, sex, or sexual orientation. This provision is inserted herein in compliance with Section

1.09 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit, and shall be interpreted so as to carry

out the intent of said ordinance.



6

18. Amendments: This lease may be amended only by written mutual agreement

of the Lessor and Lessee.

19. Notices: Notices to the parties to this lease shall be as follows:

To Lessor: City of Beloit

Attn: Andrew L. Janke, CPM

100 State Street

Beloit, WI 53511

To Lessee: Twin Oaks Farm

Attn: William Kutz

5816 East Buss Road

Clinton, WI 53525

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this lease as of the date first written

above.

LESSOR: CITY OF BELOIT LESSEE:

By: By:
Larry N. Arft, City Manager William Kutz

Attest:

By: _______________________________
Rebecca Houseman LeMire, City Clerk

Approved as to Form:

By: _______________________________
Thomas R. Casper, City Attorney





CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Ordinance Relating to Wellhead Protection – Council Referral to the Plan Commission

Date: February 18, 2013

Presenters: Harry Mathos & Drew Pennington Department: Water Resources & Planning

Overview/Background Information:
In accordance with Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) requirements, City of Beloit staff has drafted an
Ordinance to create Section 5-800 of the Zoning Ordinance, to be known as the Wellhead Protection Ordinance.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):
 The purpose of the Wellhead Protection Ordinance is to create land use regulations and restrictions that will

protect the City’s water supply from sources of contamination. The DNR directed the City to adopt a Wellhead
Protection Ordinance within 18 months in a letter dated July 20, 2011. City staff requested, and the DNR
approved, an extension until March 14, 2013.

 Essentially, the Wellhead Protection Ordinance creates a Wellhead Protection Overlay District that encompasses
the groundwater recharge area around each of the City’s wells. As the name implies, the overlay district is a
second zoning district classification, as affected properties will retain their underlying zoning district classification
(e.g. residential, commercial, industrial, etc.). As shown on the attached map, the proposed Wellhead Protection
Overlay Districts will cover a significant proportion of the City. According to staff’s calculations, 3,023 properties
will be affected. These properties are owned by 2,305 different owners, who have been individually notified.

 The Wellhead Protection Ordinance establishes permitted, conditional, and prohibited uses within the Wellhead
Protection Districts. Permitted uses include residential (on City sewer), agricultural, open space, and most
commercial, institutional, and industrial uses (on City sewer).

 Conditional uses include those with the potential to cause contamination, including metal plating & working,
commercial uses with septic systems, cemeteries, chemical manufacturers, dry cleaners, auto repair shops,
businesses with above-ground fuel & chemical tanks, and others. Prohibited uses include those with a greater
potential to cause contamination, including businesses with underground fuel & chemical tanks, radioactive waste
facilities, landfills, railroad yards, and others. Existing facilities that are listed as a conditional or prohibited use are
eligible to apply for a Conditional Use Permit to repair, rebuild, or expand the facilities, subject to very specific
requirements and conditions.

 The proposed Wellhead Protection Ordinance consists of a Zoning Text Amendment in accordance with Section
2-200 and a Zoning Map Amendment in accordance with Section 2-300 of the Zoning Ordinance.

Conformance to Strategic Plan:
 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability:
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – The

proposed Ordinance will regulate the use & storage of chemicals and other potential contaminants.
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – The proposed Ordinance is

intended to protect the City’s water supply.
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:
 Referral to the Plan Commission for the February 20, 2013 meeting
 This item will return to the City Council for a public hearing and 1

st
and 2

nd
reading on March 4, 2013

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: The City has not received any funding to implement this Ordinance. Existing staff from the
Planning Division, Water Resources Division, and City Attorney’s Office are implementing this Ordinance.

Attachments: Map and Proposed Ordinance































Beloit Aquifer System

WELL 10

113 FEET



What?

A Wellhead Protection (WHP) plan is developed to
provide measures to protect the shallow
sand/gravel and the deep stone aquifers from
becoming contaminated through the release of
regulated or unregulated hazardous substances
into the groundwater supply.

Think of it as our Groundwater Protection Plan.



Why?

 The WI DNR, working with state and federal
agencies, has developed a two part program and is
codified in NR 811 Wisconsin Administrative Code

 EPA approved the WI DNR WHP program in 1993

 A July, 2009 WI DNR audit “strongly recommended”
we implement a WHP plan

 A July, 2011 directive from the WI DNR requires a
final WHP ordinance be adopted in early 2013



How?
WHP Management Plan

 Voluntary monitoring of commercial and residential
properties to detect unsafe handling or illegal
storage of potentially hazardous substances

 Municipal well sampling and WI DNR file review

 Public education on groundwater protection

 Water conservation

 A contingency plan to maintain water supply in the
event of an emergency

 Wellhead Protection Ordinance to encourage smart
growth and activities which minimize the potential to
contaminate groundwater



Are We Alone?
According to the WI DNR over 330 Wisconsin

communities have an approved WHP plan including:

 Burlington
 Delavan
 Fontana
 Lake Geneva
 Stoughton
 Stevens Point
 Wausau
 Fond du Lac
 Madison



Wellhead Protection Overlay (WPO) Districts

 Overlay districts in general

 WPO Districts include 5 year time of travel areas

 Includes 3,023 properties across the City

 Owned by 2,305 different individuals & entities

 Individual notices sent on February 6th

 Properties in WPO Districts will retain underlying
zoning district classification

 For example, residential, commercial, industrial

 More restrictive rules will apply







Permitted Uses Within WPO Districts
 Residential (sewer)*

 Agricultural

 Parks & open space

 Most commercial, institutional, & industrial (sewer)

 Subject to list of conditional & prohibited uses

 Others in Section 5-808(a)

*Vast majority of affected properties



Conditional Uses Within WPO Districts

 Above-ground fuel & chemical tanks

 Auto repair shops

 Dry cleaners

 Chemical manufacturers

 Metal plating & working

 Commercial on septic systems

 Others in Section 5-811(b)



Prohibited Uses Within WPO Districts
 Underground fuel & chemical tanks (existing tanks

may remain)

 Radioactive waste facilities

 Landfills

 Railroad yards

 Rendering plants & slaughterhouses

 Septage, wastewater, or sewage lagoons

 Coal storage

 Others in Section 5-810(a)



Existing Conditional & Prohibited Uses

 Allowed to continue, subject to Section 5-812

 May apply for Conditional Use Permit (CUP)
to

 Repair

 Rebuild

 Expand

 CUP applications reviewed by staff, Plan
Commission, and City Council

 CUP’s subject to detailed requirements



Potential Impacts
 Increased protection of groundwater
 Additional zoning code administration duties
 Increase in CUP applications for expansions
 Increase in CUP compliance monitoring, although…

 As part of the City of Beloit Pretreatment
Program, existing businesses within the WPO
have likely completed some of the conditional use
requirements

 Elements include spill plans, chemical inventory
and emergency response procedures

 WRD Environmental staff currently oversees this
program



Questions or Comments?

 Harry Mathos, Director of Water Resources

364-2888 or mathosh@ci.beloit.wi.us

 Drew Pennington, Director of Planning & Building

364-6700 or penningtond@ci.beloit.wi.us



RESOLUTION DECLARING OFFICIAL INTENT
TO REIMBURSE EXPENDITURES

FROM PROCEEDS OF BORROWING

WHEREAS, the City of Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin (the "Issuer") plans to
undertake capital projects approved by the City Council in the 2013 Capital Improvements
Budget, as follows:

Project Title GO Debt

TERRACE TREE PLANTING $100,000

SIDEWALK IMPROVEMENTS 20,000

STREET MAINTENANCE 1,510,000

KEN HENDRICKS/HENRY AVE BRIDGE REPLACEMENT 500,000

INMAN PKWY EXTENSION: PRAIRIE AVE - SHOPIERE RD 375,000

BAYLISS AVE. REHAB: GLEN - PARK 94,640

SIXTH STREET PAVEMENT RECONSTRUCTION 107,500

WEST SIDE NEIGHBORHOOD INITIATIVE { PORTLAND: BLUFF -
FOURTH 150,000

POHLMAN FIELD IMPROVEMENTS 100,000

PARK FACILITIES & AMENITIES ENHANCEMENT 169,000

RECREATION FACILITY ENHANCEMENTS 7,500

CITY HALL CARPET REPLACEMENT 115,000

AMBULANCE REPLACEMENT #6206 119,600

COB STORAGE AREA NETWORKS (SANs) EXPANSION 70,000

LIQUID APPLICATOR & SALT SPREADER 35,000

PROPERTY ACQUISITION & DEMOLITION 200,000

CEMETERIES REPAIRS 10,000

Total $3,683,240

(the "Projects"), and;

WHEREAS, the Issuer expects to finance the Projects on a long-term basis by issuing
tax-exempt bonds or other tax-exempt obligations (collectively, the "Bonds"), and;

WHEREAS, because the Bonds may not be issued prior to commencement of the
Projects, the Issuer must provide interim financing to cover costs of the Projects incurred prior to
receipt of the proceeds of the Bonds, and;



2

WHEREAS, the City Council (the "Governing Body") of the Issuer deems it to be
necessary, desirable, and in the best interests of the Issuer to advance moneys from its funds on
hand on an interim basis to pay the costs of the Projects until the Bonds are issued.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Governing Body of the Issuer that:

Section 1. Expenditure of Funds. The Issuer shall make expenditures as needed from
its funds on hand to pay the cost of the Projects until proceeds of the Bonds become available.

Section 2. Declaration of Official Intent. The Issuer hereby officially declares its intent
under Treas. Reg. Section 1.150-2 to reimburse said expenditures with proceeds of the Bonds,
the principal amount of which is not expected to exceed $4,000,000 including estimated cost of
issuance.

Section 3. Unavailability of Long-Term Funds. No funds for payment of the Projects
from sources other than the Bonds are, or are reasonably expected to be, reserved, allocated on a
long-term basis, or otherwise set aside by the Issuer pursuant to its budget or financial policies.

Section 4. Public Availability of Official Intent Resolution. The Resolution shall be
made available for public inspection at the office of the Issuer's Clerk within 30 days after its
approval in compliance with applicable State law governing the availability of records of official
acts including Subchapter II of Chapter 19, and shall remain available for public inspection until
the Bonds are issued.

Section 5. Effective Date. This Resolution shall be effective upon its adoption and
approval.

Dated at Beloit, Wisconsin this 18th day of February, 2013.

________________________________
Charles M. Haynes,
President of the Council

ATTEST:

_________________________________
Rebecca Houseman LeMire,
City Clerk



Revised 01-10-081

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Resolution Declaring Intent to Reimburse Expenditures from Bond Proceeds

Date: February 18, 2013

Presenter(s): Paul York, Finance, and Administrative Services Director

Department(s): Finance and Administrative Services

Overview/Background Information: Each year as part of the city’s budget and capital project planning process, staff
evaluates scheduled capital improvement projects included in the Capital Budget and CIP to determine those that are eligible
and require debt financing as a funding source for project completion. For those projects included in the adopted 2013 Capital
Budget, the plan was to issue approximately $4 million in General Obligation Bonded debt. A list of the capital projects
scheduled for 2013 bond financing is included in the Declaration of Intent Resolution. U. S. Treasury Regulations Section
1.150-2 requires the city to declare its official intent to reimburse any advanced payments of project expenditures from the
bond proceeds. The Council must make this declaration by resolution.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):
1. As part of the approved 2013 Capital Budget and CIP debt financing is required to fund scheduled capital

improvement projects.
2. To reimburse project expenditures incurred prior to completion of the bond financing requires a formal declaration of

intent to reimburse as required by U. S. Treas. Regs. 1.150-2.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s
mission.):

The 2013 bond financings will satisfy four of the five key goals contained in the city’s Strategic Plan.

1. As an eco-municipality, focus on the sustainable stewardship of City resources, services and infrastructure; to protect
both our built and natural environment and enhance the quality of life for current and future generations.

2. Continue competitive and sustainable economic development focused on workforce development, retention, and
recruitment to fully serve the business and entrepreneurial community resulting in private investment and job creation.

3. Proactively partner with individuals and businesses to promote a safe and healthy community, minimize personal
injury, prevent loss of life and protect property and natural resources.

4. Apply sound, sustainable practices to promote a high quality community through historic preservation, community
revitalization, and successful new development.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long-term impact of this policy or program related to how it will
impact both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels N/A

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature N/A

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems N/A

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently N/A

If any of the four criteria are not applicable to your specific policy or program, an N/A should be entered in that
space.



Revised 01-10-082

Action required/Recommendation:
Staff recommends Council adoption of the Resolution in order to comply with U.S. Treasury Regulations related to the
issuance of tax exempt debt.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:
There is no fiscal impact associated with this action. This resolution does not obligate the city to issue debt or proceed with
the sale of any debt instruments.



RESOLUTION
REJECTING ALL BIDS FOR C13-04 POHLMAN FIELD CONCOURSE REHAB

WHEREAS, the adopted capital improvements budget for 2013 provided funding and an
appropriation for the site improvements at Pohlman Field and;

WHEREAS, project design and construction bid specifications were developed by the
City’s Engineering staff and distributed to qualified contractors, and;

WHEREAS, the project and this contract will rehabilitate the concourse by replacing the
deteriorated asphalt with new concrete, improve surface drainage and construct a rain garden,
and;

WHEREAS, construction is to be completed prior to the start of the Snappers’ season on
April 11, 2013, and;

WHEREAS, on February 7, 2013, eight competitive bids were received, and;

WHEREAS, all bids received were significantly above available funding for the project
due to early season construction, weather concerns and a short construction timeline, and;

WHEREAS, the City of Beloit has determined that it is in the best interest of the City to
reject any and all bids submitted and received;

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that any and all bids for Contract C13-04,
Pohlman Field Concourse Rehab, be, and hereby are, rejected pursuant to the City of Beloit
reservation of the right to reject all bids.

Dated at Beloit, Wisconsin this 18th day of February, 2013.

City Council of the City of Beloit

__________________________
Charles M. Haynes, President

ATTEST:

Rebecca Houseman LeMire, City Clerk



Revised 01-10-08

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Award of Construction Contract for C13-04 Pohlman Field Concourse Rehab

Date: February 18, 2013

Presenter(s): Michael Flesch, City Engineer Department(s): Public Works/ Engineering

Overview/Background Information:

This project will rehabilitate the concourse at Pohlman Field. The deteriorated asphalt will be replaced with new concrete.
Some drainage improvements will be made and a rain garden will be constructed. This contract was bid requiring construction
to be complete prior to the start of the Snappers’ season. Most of the construction would have to take place in March.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):

1. Eight bids were received for this project. The low bid of $92,874.90 was from Parisi Construction Co. Inc. and is
69.4% more than the engineer’s estimate of $54,825.00.

2. The bids ranged from $92,874.90 to $140,201.20.
3. The budget for this project was $58,000.
4. Bids were high due to the short construction timeline before the Snappers start their season and unknown weather

conditions in March and early April.
5. Construction cannot begin until the frost is out of the ground and the forecast calls for 3 consecutive weeks of

favorable weather.
6. The schedule of games and events at Pohlman does not allow for an extended period for construction after April 11

th
.

7. Without good weather in March, construction could be delayed until after the Snappers’ season is over in the fall.
8. Rebidding for fall construction is likely to reduce the cost by allowing for extra construction time, eliminating the need

for cold-weather concrete protection and having a more stable base as the ground is usually wet and soft in the
spring.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s mission.):

1. Develop a high quality community through the responsible stewardship and enhancement of City resources
to further Beloit’s resurgence as a gem of the Rock River Valley.

 This project will greatly improve the look and function of the concourse at Pohlman Field.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both
the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels

N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature

N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems

N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently

N/A

If any of the four criteria are not applicable to your specific policy or program, an N/A should be entered in that space.

Action required/Recommendation:

The Engineering Division recommends to not award the contract and to reject all bids. The project would then immediately be
rebid with construction to take place after the Snappers’ season is over in the fall.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:









130208 1539 (cln) Form Revised 07-01-08

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Resolution Approving Release of City Rights under Development Agreements dated November 4,
1998 and April 3, 2007 & Access and Parking Easement dated May 30, 2008

Date: February 18, 2013

Presenter(s): Thomas R. Casper Department(s): City Attorney

Overview/Background Information:

Hendricks Commercial Properties is proposing to sell a lot located adjacent to Henry Avenue at the Eclipse Mall to Associated
Bank for the purpose of constructing a new banking facility. The parcel proposed for sale is subject to various rights in favor
of the City pursuant to Development Agreements dated November 4, 1998 and April 3, 2007 along with an Access and
Parking Easement dated May 30, 2008. The City has no interest in preserving any of the rights set out in those recorded
documents as they relate to the parcel proposed for sale. The release document being submitted to the Council is limited to
only the parcel being proposed for sale and the City will continue to have its existing rights under both Development
Agreements and the Access and Parking Easement over the balance of the lands described in those documents.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):

Release the City’s rights as to the property described on Exhibit A arising under the Development Agreements dated
November 4, 1998 and April 3, 2007 together with the City’s rights under the Access and Parking Easement dated May 30,
2008.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s mission.):

Consideration of this request supports strategic goal #1.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both
the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels N/A

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature N/A

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems N/A

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently N/A

If any of the four criteria are not applicable to your specific policy or program, an N/A should be entered in that space.

Action required/Recommendation:

It is recommended that Council approve the resolution submitted.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:

There is no direct fiscal impact, although completion of this project will encourage new construction and benefit the real estate
tax base.


	Monday, February 18, 2013
	1.	CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
	2.	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	3.	SPECIAL ORDERS OF THE DAY/ANNOUNCEMENTS – none
	4.	PUBLIC HEARINGS
	a. Public Hearing and First Reading of a proposed Ordinance amending the City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan for the properties located at 545 and 549 W. Grand Avenue; 615, 619, 625, and 629 Eighth Street; 548 Locust Street; 1203, 1233, 1249, 1253, and 1257 Sixth Street; 219 and 225 North Street; and 1313, 1317, 1323, 1327, 1333, 1339, 1343, 1349, and 1353 Sixth Street, from the Neighborhood Commercial, Two-family, and Single-family Residential-Urban use designations, to the Institutional and Community Service use designation (Christensen)  Plan Commission recommendation for approval 5-0
	b.	Public Hearing and First Reading of a proposed Ordinance amending the City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan for the property located at 501 Prospect Street, from the Institutional and Community Service use designation, to the Neighborhood Commercial use designation (Christensen)  Plan Commission recommendation for approval 5-0
	c. Proposed Ordinance to amend the Zoning District Map of the City of Beloit to change the zoning district classification of the property located at 2208 N. Lee Lane from R-1A, Single-family Residential District, to PLI, Public Lands and Institutions District (Christensen) Plan Commission recommendation for approval 6-0  First Reading, suspend the rules for a Second Reading
	d.	Resolution authorizing a Conditional Use Permit to allow indoor alcohol sales in a C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, for the property located at 1623 Park Avenue (Christensen)  Plan Commission recommendation for denial 6-0

	5.	CITIZENS PARTICIPATION
	6.	CONSENT AGENDA
	a.	Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of February 4, 2013  (LeMire)
	b. Resolution approving Change of Agent for Speedway, LLC, d/b/a Speedway #4293, located at 2781 Milwaukee Road, from Nancy A. Bryant to Sheryl Lynn La Tronico  (LeMire)  ABLCC recommendation for approval 6-0 
	c.	Proposed City Center Connections Plan (Christensen)  Refer to the Plan CommissionThe City Center Plan is available for review at www.ci.beloit.wi.us
	d.	Application for a 2-Lot Certified Survey Map for the property located at 1650 Lee Lane (Christensen) Refer to the Plan Commission
	e.	Resolution authorizing Final Payment of Public Works Contract C12-13, Colby Street Reconstruction (Flesch)
	f.	Resolution authorizing Final Payment of Public Works Contract C12-20, McKinley Avenue Reconstruction (Flesch)
	g.	Resolution authorizing Final Payment of Public Works Contract C12-03, West Grand Parking Lot  (Flesch)
	h.	Resolutions authorizing Final Payment of Public Works Contract C12-19, Street Resurfacing 2012-Phase II  (Flesch)
	i.	Resolution approving Farm Leases between the City of Beloit and Twin Oaks Farm  (Janke)

	7.	ORDINANCES
	a. Presentation of a proposed Zoning Text Amendment creating Section 5-800 of the Zoning Ordinance, Article V, Chapter 19 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit, to be known as the Wellhead Protection Ordinance (Mathos)  Refer to the Plan Commission

	8.	APPOINTMENTS -none
	9.	COUNCILOR ACTIVITIES AND UPCOMING EVENTS
	10.	CITY MANAGER’S PRESENTATION
	a.	Presentation on the Public Housing Redevelopment Project (Christensen/Pollard)

	11.	REPORTS FROM BOARD AND CITY OFFICERS
	a.	Resolution Declaring Official Intent to Reimburse Expenditures from Proceeds of Borrowing (York)
	b.	Resolution Rejecting all Bids for Public Works Contract C13-04, Pohlman Field Concourse Rehab  (Flesch)
	c.	Resolution approving Release of City Rights under Development Agreements dated November 4, 1998 and April 3, 2007 and access and parking easement dated May 30, 2008, regarding property located at the Eclipse Center (Casper)

	12.	ADJOURNMENT

